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If anyone would like to contribute to the newsletter, it could be anything, information 

on Penderyn, perhaps a story to tell, photographs to share, etc.  

 Please contact any committee member or,  

email: chair@penderynhistoricalsociety.org.uk 
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New Website 

Fellow member Deric John has 

created a new website featuring 

Penderyn place names.  The site 

can be found at: https://

sites.google.com/site/

penderynplacenames/home 

Although it is still a work in 

progress it is well worth a visit.  

Check out the links on our website 

to see Dericôs other sites. 

BACK ISSUES 

Back issues of your newsletter can be viewed  on our website at: 

penderynhistoricalsociety.org.uk/content/publications  

YOUR  COMMITTEE 

Chair:   Mrs Celia Morgan 

Secretary:  Mrs Kathleen Forward 

Treasurer:  Mrs Margaret Thomas 

Membership Secretary:  Mrs Joyce Morgan 

Committee Members:  

Mr Alan Llewellyn 

Mrs Debbie Smart 

Mr Kelvin James 

Mrs Hilary Cuss 

2015 PROGRAMME 

Wednesday April15th 

Steffan ap Dafydd  

People Involved In The Merthyr Riots of 1831 

  

Wednesday May 20th  

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 

 Followed by Mr  Ieuan Evans  

EwennyPottery  

 

Wednesday June 17th  

Mr Alwyn Evans  

'George W. Hall, A Welsh entrepreneur in Australia' 
 

Thanks to Hannah Forward for 

information and the night scene 

photograph. 

On the subject of films being 

made in Penderyn, the film óBy 

One Nameô Starring Cengiz Der-

vis was partly filmed in the Lamb 

Hotel, back last year, and this is 

due for release shortly. Written 

by Katherine John pictured above 

with Phill and Angela of the Lamb 

Hotel. 
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January 

Our first Speaker in 2015 was Mr 

Geoffrey Evans who gave us an 

interesting and informative talk on  

War Memorials, 2014 was of 

course the 100th Anniversary of the 

Great War and it has made us 

more mindful of War Memorials. 

War Memorials are all around us 

and in the main they relate to the 

1st and 2nd World Wars although 

they go back Centuries, in the 

beginning they were only erected 

to commemorate Battles and 

Generals and not ordinary 

soldiers. The most recognisable 

War Memorial in the Country is at 

Whitehall London. 

War Memorials are very ancient 

and are not just Monuments they 

can be plaques, stain glass 

windows and bells in Churches 

and even buildings such as Battle 

Abbey near Hastings built by the 

Normans and All Souls College 

Oxford which dates back to 1438. 

They first started to memorialise 

people during the Afghan War in 

1838 and later, the Boar War. Last 

year to commemorate the 100th 

Anniversary of the 1st World War 

the Post Office brought out a 

stamp with a photo illustrating 

Private William Cecil Tickle, a 

Londoner who joined up when he 

was 18 years old and was killed on 

the 3rd day of the Battle of the 

Somme. 

Every village and town in the 

Cynon Valley and throughout the 

Country will have a Memorial to 

those who laid down their lives for 

us. 

Geoff has also written a book 

called ñThe Men who Marched 

Awayò unlocking the Cynon Valley 

War Memorials. 

 

February 

Brian Davies gave us a very 

interesting and informative talk on 

John Nixon and the exporting of 

Welsh coal to France.  John Nixon 

was born in 1815 in a village called 

Barlow in County Durham; he 

became a Colliery mining engineer 

and in 1839 came to South Wales 

to earn a living.  He bought the 

Deep Duffryn mine in Mountain 

Ash and in 1860 sunk the 

Navigation Pit He died in London 

in June 1899  and is buried in 

Mountain Ash Cemetery. 

Every other coal field in Britain 

produced coal mainly for industries 

in its own area but apart from the 

Ironworks there were not a lot of 

industries in South Wales that 

burnt coal.  

As France industrialised they could 

only produce about half the coal 

they needed so had to import coal 

and most of it came from South 

Wales as the coal produced here 

was a lot cleaner and did not 

produced very little smoke when 

burned. John Nixon had the 

monopoly contract from the French 

to supply them with South Wales 

coal. South Wales became par 

excellence at Coal Export as 65% 

or more of all the coal mined here 

went out through the ports and 

France became our major export 

for the best part of 50 years.  

 

March 

The Speaker for March was Mrs 

Gwyneth Evans who told the 

poignant story of the drowning of 

Cwmtaf and the impact on the way 

Mr Geoffrey Evans 

Mr Brian Davies 
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of life of its inhabitants. As you 

look from the Storey Arms towards 

Cefn Coed the three reservoirs are 

The Beacons, Cantref and Llwyn-

Onn. 

The need for clean water came 

about because of the cholera 

epidemic in Cardiff in 1849. In 

1884 the Cardiff Corporation Act 

provided for the maintenance of 

works and impounding and 

utilisation of the streams in the Taff 

Fawr Valley, the total area covered 

was 10,400 acres. They 

purchased common and great 

forest lands in order to construct 

the reservoirs. The navvies that 

built the reservoirs came from all 

over the country. 

The first reservoir was completed 

in 1897, no enclosed land was 

affected or farms were lost. 

Construction work started on the 

second reservoir in 1886 and took 

six and a half years to build, five 

sheep farms were taken to build 

this reservoir but only two are 

under the water the others were 

demolished.  At one time there 

were 37 farms in Cwm Taff but 

now only 4 remain. 

The third reservoir houses the 

hamlet of Ynysyfelin ïñThe village 

under the waterò. It comprised of 

two public houses ï the Red Lion 

and the Farmers Arms, Bethel 

Chapel and various farms. On a 

very dry summers day you can see 

the remains of the bridge.  Work 

commenced on this reservoir in 

1910 and aimed to complete in 

1916 but WW1 intervened. During 

construction five lives were lost 

and they are buried in a communal 

grave in the new Bethel Chapel 

that was built by the Cardiff 

Corporation in 1914. The reservoir 

was not actually opened until 1926 

and the ceremony was attended 

by the Lord and Lady Mayoress of 

Cardiff. 

Lewsyn and the Magic 

Drawers 

On the Road 

The society was approached by 

Rob Tay to stage the above panto 

in the village hall at Ystradfellte. 

This took place in January on a 

very cold snowy night, but despite 

the weather the Penderyn Players 

turned up and performed to over a 

hundred people. 

With the hilarious antics on stage, 

especially with Meurig doing his 

strip, everyone really enjoyed. 

Hopefully we will get some photoôs 

on the website soon for you all to 

see. 

Our thanks again go to the 

Penderyn Players, Ray Morgan, 

The New Inn and everyone behind 

the scenes. 

And of course we must thank 

Gwyn and Joyce for their hard 

work. 

St. Davidôs Day Concert 

The society hosted itôs second St 

Davidôs Day concert, again thanks 

to Gwyn and Joyce.  And once 

again the Penderyn Players took 

part to whom we are extremely 

grateful. Again we had a full house 

and everyone really enjoyed 

themselves.   

Mrs Gwyneth Evans 
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Thanks to Margaret and Marg for 

doing the teas, Ray for playing the 

piano and of course Gwyn and 

Joyce for organizing another great 

evening. 

Pant cefn y ffordd  

By 

Deric John 

This is the present name of the farm 

at the side of the back road 

between Penderyn and Rhigos, just 

below Penderyn church. The name 

appears very suited to the farmôs 

location, in a dingle (pant) ffordd). 

But the 1840 Tithe Map has 

Pantycynferth as the farmôs name, 

which makes the last element 

(cynferth) problematic.  Luckily, 

earlier forms recorded as 

Pantcyfnerth in 1796 and Tir Pwll 

Kyfnerth in 1553, identify cyfnerth 

rather than cynferth as the last 

element. 

Pwll Cyfnerth as it is today 

At Pant cefn y fordd 

at the back of the road (cefn y 

ffordd). Cyfnerth is used here 

as an adjective meaning 

ósupportingô. Pant cyfnerth 

would therefore be a 

ósupporting hollowô and Pwll 

cyfnerth a ósupporting poolô.    

But there are many examples 

from the Middle Ages of 

Cyfnerth as a personal name 

eg. Tir Ievan ap Cyfnerth, Tyd-
dyn Cyfnerth etc. It is possible 

then that Pant Cyfnerth and 

Pwll Cyfnerth were the 

properties of a person named 

Cyfnerth. Pwll Cyfnerth was at 

Pant Cyfnerth which through 

metathesis became Pant 

cynferth. When the 

significance of the earlier 

name was was lost, 

Pantcefnyffordd was 

substituted in order to 

rationalise the name and give 

it a meaning. 

Filming in Penderyn 

again 

Penderyn these days seems to  

popular with television and film 

crews.  Once again there were 

two nights of filming on the old 

road between Penderyn and 

Rhigos.  The film is being made 

by an American company and is 

called at the moment óBastard 

Executionerô, The following is 

taken from the IMDb data base, 

ôBastard Executioner tells the 

story of a warrior knight in King 

Edward The Thirds charge who 

is broken by the ravages of war 

and vows to lay down his sword. 

But when that violence finds him 

he again, he is forced to pick up 

the bloodiest sword of all.ô   

Director:  Paris Barclay  

Writer:  Kurt Sutter  

Stars:  Katey Sagal, Kurt Sutter, 

Matthew Rhys  

There seemed to be artificial 

snow on the ground and big elec-

tric fans were taken to the site, 

possibly to create blizzard condi-

tions.   

It was reported that there was 

also a smoke machine there.  

During the two nights of filming, 

locals say it resembled Blackpool 

illuminations.     

Fans used on site 

Pant cefn y ffordd & St Cynogôs 

Church 


